
Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate 
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  Botchergate  Carlisle 

Cumbria  CA1 1RDA   
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
 

  

 

 

17 February 2023 

 
 
To:   The Chair and Members of the  

Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
Scrutiny Board 

 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 
 
A meeting of the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board will be held as follows:  
 
 Date: Monday 27 February 2023 

 Time: 10.00 am 

 Place: County Offices, Kendal 

 
 
NB THERE WILL BE A PRE-MEETING OF THE BOARD AT 9.30 am IN THE 

COUNCIL CHAMBER AND ALL MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND 
 
 
Simon Higgins 
Assistant Director – Customer and Community Services 
 
 
 
 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Lorraine Davis  
Direct Line: 07929 164805 
Email: lorraine.davis@cumbria.gov.uk   

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats 
 

 
 
 

Serving the People of Cumbria 



 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
  
County Council Representatives 
 

 

Mrs H Carrick 
Mr S Collins 
Mr P Dew 
Mrs S Evans 
Mr K Hamilton 
Mr K Hitchen 
Mr M Hawkins 
Mr N Hughes 
Mr J Lister 
Mrs C McCarron-Holmes  
Mr B McEwan 
Mr P Turner 
Mr B Wearing (Chair) 
Mr M Wilson (Vice-Chair) 
 
 
District Council Representatives 
 
Allerdale Borough Council – Vacant  
Barrow Borough Council – Ms H Edwards  
Carlisle City Council – Mr J Bainbridge  

Copeland Borough Council – Mr J Kane  

Eden District Council – Vacant  

South Lakeland District Council –Vacant 

 
 
 
 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –  
www.cumbria.gov.uk   
 
Background Papers 
 
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Democratic Services Unit at the address 
overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/


 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 
 

1   APOLOGIES 
 

To receive any apologies for absence. 
   
 
2   MEMBERSHIP 

 
To note any changes in membership. 
   
 
3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises 

 
1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit or gain.  
 
2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 

the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 

a beneficial interest) and the authority  
 
 (a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
 
 (b)  Which has not been fully discharged.  
 
4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.   
 
5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 

the authority for a month or longer.   
 
6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
 
 (a) The landlord is the authority; and 
 
 (b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest. 
 



 

 

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 
 
 (a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 

of the authority; and 
 
 (b) Either –  
 
  (i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
  (ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered. 
 
Note 
 
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).  
   
 
4   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda. 
   
 
5   MINUTES 

 
To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2022 (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
6   FINANCE UPDATE 

 
To consider a report from the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 11 - 14) 
 
7   GOVERNANCE UPDATE 

 
To consider a report from the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 15 - 18) 
 
8   STRATEGY UPDATE 

 
To consider a report from the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 19 - 48) 
 



 

 

9   DELIVERY UPDATE 
 

To consider a report from the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 49 - 58) 
 
10   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
To note that this is the last meeting of the Committee in the life of Cumbria County 
Council. 
   
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



  1 

 

 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board 

 
10.30 am, 20 September 2022 

 
 

Present at the meeting 
 

 
County Councillors 
Mr B Wearing (Chair) 
Mr M Wilson (Vice-Chair) 
Mrs C McCarron-Holmes 
Mr K Hamilton 
Mr K Hitchen 
Mr P Turner 
Mr N Hughes 
Mr B McEwan 
 

 
 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were received from Mr P Dew and Mr S Collins.  
 
 
 
2 MEMBERSHIP  
 
The Board noted that South Lakes District Council had not yet appointed a new 
representative.  
 
 
 
3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED that,  members agreed the minutes of the previous meeting as an 

accurate and complete record.  
 
 
 
4 CLEP OVERVIEW AND IMPLICATIONS OF LEP REVIEW  
 
The Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP introduced the report by speaking about the 

governance of the LEP. Members heard that the CLEP had recently advertised for 

three new private sector Board members,  representing the visitor economy, 

advanced manufacturing and professional services. Female applicants were 

particularly encouraged as CLEP must meet a gender equality target by January 

2023. Interviews took place on 9 September and the aim was for CLEP to have the 

new appointments ratified at the AGM on 30 September 2022.  

 

A brief discussion took place at this point regarding the role going forward of CLEP in 

professional development and education. Members were reassured that the LEP 

7

Agenda Item 5



2 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (20.9.22) 
 
 

 

Board were fully committed to ensuring sustainable work and skills development for 

young people and that the work programmes would stay consistent with this 

commitment. 

 

An update was provided on the progress of the LEP Review, members heard that a 

Working Group had been formed with DHLUC officials to take forward the 

implications of the Levelling Up White Paper on LEPs, namely integration with Local 

Government by 2030 and the business of LEPs in areas that have no immediate 

plans for integration. An update would be provided when more information had 

become available as progress had stalled due to recent change of Prime Minister.  

 

The Chief Executive – CLEP moved on to provide an update on Clean Energy 

projects beginning with the Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production (STEP) 

application. The UKAEA had completed its siting assessment for STEP and a 

recommendation has been made to BEIS with a decision expected from the 

Secretary of State by the end of the calendar year. A successful Parliamentary 

Reception was held on 27 May to maintain the profile of the Cumbria bid. A Cumbria 

event to thank the regional stakeholders, who had supported the bid, took place on 

the afternoon of 2 September 2022 with attendees also updated on Cumbria’s wider 

clean energy ambitions.  A discussion took place regarding the importance of 

identifying transformative opportunities for Cumbria.  

 

Members then heard that the CLEP’s submission of sites to the competition for the 

Heavy Pressure Vessel facility resulted in the successful shortlisting of Kingmoor 

Park in Carlisle, which is one of seven shortlisted sites. This facility would be the 

largest of the module manufacturing facilities required, with an expectation that two 

further sites might follow. RR-SMR state that 90% of the overall construction effort 

would be delivered through the manufacturing facilities, which it is envisioned would 

become a global export market. Over 100 applications were submitted from across 

the country, and so members agreed that this was a very positive result for Cumbria.  

 

The Scrutiny Board heard that the LEP’s Decarbonisation by Design pilot had now 

concluded. It produced eight technically valuable reports for the businesses and 

implementation of these would produce significant carbon savings, now and in the 

future. Rather than looking to scale up the programme, given the costs incurred and 

the consistent themes identified, it is felt that a greater return on investment would be 

provided by implementing the report’s recommendations.  

 

Members considered the Delivery Plan as part of this item and asked for clarification 

in some areas the Chief Executive provided assurance and clarified that the 

document was for consideration by a specialist audience with a working knowledge 

of the subject matter.  

 

Members noted the contents of the report.  

 

8



 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (20.9.22) 3 
 
 

 

 
 
5 2022/23 DELIVERY PLAN  
 
This 2022/23 Delivery Plan was considered as part of the previous item recorded at 
Minute 63.  
 
 
 
6 CUMBRIA CLEAN ENERGY STRATEGY  
 
The Chief Executive – CLEP introduced the report by explaining that Clean Energy 
generation was a significant priority for Cumbria LEP as the county has expertise 
and credibility in this area. The CLEP produced the strategy to be shared with its 
partners in business. It was explained that Cumbria was a net contributor to the grid 
but this could be increased. The plan could see the contribution create an additional 
9 gigawatts of clean energy which would provide up to 13000 long term jobs in the 
county.  
 
Members heard that productive conversations were now taking place on the basis of 
the strategy on topics including: off shore wind, fusion and innovation in nuclear, 
network linkage and storage.  
 
The Chair of Cumbria LEP explained that part of the reason why the Clean Energy 
Strategy was commissioned was to ensure the business sector was able to consider 
all of the opportunities in clean energy and not make the mistake of focusing all of 
their energies on a single opportunity.  
 
Members noted the contents of the report.  
 
 
 
7 CLEP ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING UPDATE  
 
Members considered a report which provided a brief to members on the CLEP 
Annual General Meeting. 
 
It was reported that the Vice Chair would represent the LEP Scrutiny Board this year 
at the Annual AGM. The update would include some of the following items:-  
 

• Economic Overview 

• Journey to NET Zero  

• Levelling Up White Paper and implications for the LEP  

• Repurposing the Cumbria Infrastructure Fund 

• Economic Impact Update 

• Labour Supply and Skills 

• CLEP Support for Business 

 
Members noted the contents of the report.  
 

9



4 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (20.9.22) 
 
 

 

 
8 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 
The next meeting of the LEP Scrutiny Board is due to take place on 17 February 
2023.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended 12:15 pm 
 

10



LEP FINANCE UPDATE  

 

1. ISSUE 

 

1.1  Updating the LEP Scrutiny Board on LEP’s financial position.   

 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 

 

2.1 That the LEP Scrutiny Board note this report and raise any issues in relation 

to it.  

 

3. BACKGROUND 

 

2022/23 Income 

3.1 When the management accounts provided at Annex A were prepared at the 

end of December 2022, CLEP’s outstanding funding related to the residue of Skills 

Bootcamp funding; the outstanding Careers and Enterprise Company management 

costs for the period July 2022 onwards, the Quarter 3 and 4 funding for the BEIS 

Growth Hub; the CEC:HIP funding of £61,500; the recently announced £19,500 

Teacher Encounter Fund and the 2023/24 CEC Programme funding. The 

outstanding DiT KAM payments were also to be progressed.  

3.2 The most substantive outstanding funding relates to the Skills Bootcamp 

programmes, with the funding for this to be drawn down in line with agreed triggers. 

Currently the advance, is still to be fully utilised.  Significant work has gone into 

progressing the programme to ensure effective delivery.  

3.3 Currently, there are an additional two income lines that need to be added to 

both the income and expenditure lines the Barrow Business Support Programme and 

the Cumbria County Council transfer of CIF funding for the Innovating for Success 

grant funding, given that appraisal of grant applications is now underway. Once the 

details are finalised, the management accounts will be updated to include this 

income and expenditure line.  

2022/23 Expenditure 

3.4 Expenditure is currently in line with expectations and at this point there are no 

budgets that are causing particular concern. Although, the Board has agreed that 

£25,000 of funding should be vired from professional services into the 

communications budget and this will be included in the forecast outturn in the next 

management accounts.   

3.5 CLEP despite best efforts has not been able to identify additional eligible 

expenditure that could be defrayed on the EPSRC project and as such has agreed to 

return the remaining £7,016 of funding. This has no material impact as it was a ring-

11

Agenda Item 6



fenced budget and the project itself was delivered very efficiently, with EPSRC highly 

complimentary about the quality of the work delivered.  

3.6 The budget for the 2022/23 financial year continues to show an operating 

surplus of £78,271. This means that unrestricted income and expenditure reserves of 

£591,331 are forecasted to be carried forward into the 2023/24 financial year. 

2023/24 Budget 

3.7 At this point it has not been possible to construct a provisional budget for 

2023/24 as clarity has yet to emerge on the 2023/24 core funding, Growth Hub and 

DIT KAM funding. This will be produced as soon as greater funding certainty is 

available.  

Cumbria Arts and Culture Network (CACN) 

3.8 LEP Scrutiny Board members are aware that the LEP hosted the Cumbria 

Arts and Culture Network until the organisation could establish itself as a company. 

The LEP Board asked that this process was concluded by the end of December 

2022.  

 

3.9 A process was put in place to achieve this with a Deed of Termination signed 

between the parties with the hosting arrangements ceasing on 31 December 2022. 

The funds held on behalf of CACN were transferred to the new company alongside a 

record of expenditure.  

 

3.10 LEP Scrutiny Board members are invited to note this report and raise 

any issues in relation to this.  

 

 

12



Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership Limited 

Year ending 31 March 2023

Summary of forecast and budgeted income and expenditure accounts 

Apr-22

 to

Dec-22

Actual 

Apr-22 

to 

Dec-22

Shortfall 

(surplus)

Apr-22

 to 

Mar-23 Forecast

Apr-22

 to 

Mar-23 Budget

£ £ £ £

Income 

DHLUC Core Funding 375,000                 -                       375,000               375,000               

Match funding - other parties 30,000                   -                       30,000                 30,000                 

Match funding - Sellafield 100,000                 -                       100,000               100,000               

Sellafield - Residue of NWNA Funding 954                         -                       954                       954                       

Skills Bootcamp 535,144                 440,218              975,362               975,362               

BEIS Growth Hub Funding 118,874                 112,126              231,000               231,000               

Cumbria Infrastructure Revenue Fund 300,000                 -                       300,000               218,751               

DIT 2022/23 Funding 26,000                   26,000                52,000                 52,000                 

CEC Careers Hub Programme 21/22 45,767                   -                       45,767                 41,767                 

CEC Management Budget 24,591                   83,409                108,000               108,000               

CEC Hub Innovation Projects: Removing Barriers 5,000                     61,500                66,500                 66,500                 

Local Energy Lead 46,099                   7,901                   54,000                 54,000                 

EPSRC Project 9,835                     -                       9,835                   9,835                   

Skills Advisory Panel 55,000                   -                       55,000                 55,000                 

Interest 10,826                   (10,826)               -                        -                        

Cumbria Arts and Culture Network 36,632                   -                       36,632                 26,632                 

Sundries 125                         (125)                    -                        -                        

1,719,847              720,203              2,440,050            2,344,801            

Expenditure 

LEP Staffing (430,576)                (219,424)             (650,000)              (650,000)              

EPSRC Programme Costs (2,819)                    (7,016)                 (9,835)                  (9,835)                  

Local Energy Hub - Salary (44,504)                  (6,496)                 (51,000)                (51,000)                

Local Energy Hub - Travel (347)                       (2,653)                 (3,000)                  (3,000)                  

CEC Hub Innovation Projects: Removing Barriers – Salary -                         (37,500)               (37,500)                (37,500)                

CEC Hub Innovation Projects: Removing Barriers – Travel -                         (1,500)                 (1,500)                  (1,500)                  

CEC Hub Innovation Projects: Removing Barriers – Programme expenditure -                         (27,500)               (27,500)                (27,500)                

Board & Operational Expenses - Travel (6,312)                    (3,688)                 (10,000)                (10,000)                

Board & Operational Expenses - Other (12,507)                  (7,493)                 (20,000)                (20,000)                

Cumbria Arts and Culture Network (19,706)                  (16,926)               (36,632)                (26,632)                

(516,771)                (330,196)             (846,967)              (836,967)              

Marketing & Comms

Comms - General (88,985)                  (11,015)               (100,000)              (100,000)              

(88,985)                  (11,015)               (100,000)              (100,000)              

Other Running Costs

Accountable Body Costs (90,000)                  -                       (90,000)                (90,000)                

IT Services (15,000)                  -                       (15,000)                (15,000)                

Research and Intelligence (45,000)                  -                       (45,000)                (45,000)                

CEC Programme Budget (45,282)                  (485)                    (45,767)                (41,767)                

Sellafield - NWNA Programme (954)                       -                       (954)                     (954)                     

Professional Services (164,514)                (953,928)             (1,118,442)           (1,058,442)           

Studies and Research (44,940)                  (46,309)               (91,249)                (70,000)                

LEP Network (8,400)                    -                       (8,400)                  (8,400)                  

Depreciation (1,100)                    1,100                   -                        -                        

Corporation Tax -                         -                       -                        -                        

(415,189)                (999,623)             (1,414,812)           (1,329,563)           

Total expenditure (1,020,945)            (1,340,834)          (2,361,779)           (2,266,530)           

Surplus/(Deficit) before tax 698,902                 (620,631)             78,271                 78,271                 

Interest receivable -                         -                       -                        -                        

Corporation Tax -                         -                       -                        -                        

Surplus/(Deficit) after tax 698,902                 (620,631)             78,271                 78,271                 

13



Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership Limited 

Actual balance sheet as at 31 December 2022

£ £ £

Fixed Assets 4,766                   

Current Assets

Cash at bank and in hand 1,538,778            

Accrued income -                        

Prepayments -                        

1,538,778            

Current liabilities 

Corporation tax -                        

Deferred income -                        

Accruals -                        

Net assets 1,543,544

Income and 

Expenditure Restricted Total 

Reserves b/fwd 513,060                 331,582              844,642               

Income and expenditure surplus/(deficit) to 31 December 2022 698,902                 -                       698,902               

Reserves c/fwd 1,211,962              331,582              1,543,544            

Forecast Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

£ £ £

Fixed assets 4,400                   

Current assets 

Cash at bank and in hand 891,513               

Accrued income 27,000                 

Prepayments -                        

918,513               

Current Liabilities 

Corporation tax -                        

Deferred income -                        

Accruals -                        

-                        

Net assets 922,913               

Income and 

Expenditure
Restricted Total 

Reserves b/fwd 513,060                 331,582              844,642               

Income and expenditure surplus/(deficit) to 31 March 2023 78,271                   -                       78,271                 

Reserves c/fwd 591,331                 331,582              922,913               

31-Dec-22

31-Mar-23

14



LEP GOVERNANCE UPDATE  

 

1. ISSUE 

 

1.1  Updating the LEP Scrutiny Board on the governance of Cumbria LEP.   

 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 

 

2.1 That the LEP Scrutiny Board note this report and raise any issues in relation 

to it.  

 

3. BACKGROUND 

 

3.1 LEPs are assessed by Government against three main themes – governance, 

strategy and delivery. This report is focused on the governance theme and provides 

reassurances on the steps that the LEP is taking to ensure that Cumbria LEP 

(CLEP) remains compliant with assurance requirements as a private company 

limited by guarantee funded by public monies.  

 

3.2 CLEP continues to operate its tri-partite scrutiny arrangements - to 

Government through the Annual Performance Review and all of the individual Grant 

Funding Agreements; to Local Government through Board membership and the 

Scrutiny Board; and to business and wider partners through CLEP's extensive 

governance arrangements, Annual General Meeting and Annual Report. These sit 

alongside its responsibilities as a company limited by guarantee and the assurance 

requirements associated with this.  

 

Board and Wider Appointments 

 

3.3  Since the last LEP Scrutiny Board, CLEP has appointed five new Board 

members to replace Board members, who had completed their terms of office or 

stepped down, including Des Moore and Janett Walker. These new members are 

Mark Brook, Manufacturing Director, James Walker SPS Limited; Julie Clayton, 

Chief Executive, Eden Valley and Jigsaw Hospices; Jennifer Cormack, Sales and 

Marketing Director, Windermere Lake Cruises; Emma-lea Dalton, Business 

Owner/Director and the LEP’s SME Champion and Claire Deekes, Chief Customer 

Officer, Cumberland Building Society.  

 

3.4 All of these new Board members have been inducted and are picking up new 

portfolio responsibilities, including Claire Deekes becoming Chair of the newly 

formed Business Decarbonisation Strategy Group.  

 

15

Agenda Item 7



3.5 Lorrainne Smyth’s appointment was extended for a further three-year term, 

with her continuing to be a private sector representative representing the wider 

interests of the voluntary and community sector.  

 

3.6 These appointments ensured that CLEP met the gender equality target by 

Government’s January 2023 deadline with the Board now being 50% female and 

50% male. The Board also continues to meet its requirement for two thirds of the 

Board to be from the private sector.  

 

3.7 During the period Mary Robinson, non-Board Chair of the Rural Sector Panel 

indicated her intention to step down and the Board agreed that Sarah Swindley 

would take on the role, going forward.  

 

3.8 Local Government Reorganisation will result in further changes to the Board 

with the public sector places reducing from 6 to 4 to reflect the move to two new 

Local Authorities, with the shadow Leaders of both authorities invited to join the 

Board. A compensating reduction of 2 private sector members is planned for 

Summer 2023, when two members terms of office conclude.  

 

Accountable Body 

 

3.9 Cumbria County Council has acted as CLEP’s single Accountable Body since 

its inception and has provided legal and financial assurance for CLEP funding and 

investment programmes. This role will transfer to Westmorland and Furness Council, 

which will be responsible for the management and administration of CLEP funding to 

comply with Government assurance requirements, with the S151 Officer having the 

statutory assurance responsibility.   

 

3.10 This responsibility will not confer any preferential treatment in the decision 

making and allocation of CLEP funding, with investment decisions continuing to be 

made through the CLEP governance structure as set out in the Local Assurance 

Framework. 

 

Scrutiny Arrangements 

 

3.11 Currently, CLEP reports to the LEP Scrutiny Board as a single scrutiny body 

representing all Local Authorities. Going forward, the shadow authorities have 

confirmed that they will have separate scrutiny arrangements with the LEP required 

to report to both the Cumberland LEP Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the 

Westmorland and Furness Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee. These 

arrangements are being integrated into the Local Assurance Framework.  

 

 

 

16



Local Assurance Framework 

 

3.12 The anticipated update to the National Local Assurance Framework has yet to 

be completed by Government and as such work on updating the Local Assurance 

Framework to reflect changes to the Accountable Body and membership of the 

CLEP Board has now commenced. Work is underway to make the necessary 

changes and a final set of revisions to the Local Assurance Framework will be taken 

to the CLEP Board in March for approval in advance of vesting day. These changes 

will need to be agreed between CLEP and the two new authorities. 

 

Annual Performance Review 

 

3.13 Government’s Local Growth Assurance Team confirmed that Cumbria LEP’s 

indicative outcome for the 22-23 Annual Performance Review process was: Met.  

This was on the basis of consideration of: 

 

• Quarter 2 2022-23 Getting Building Fund (GBF) and Local Growth Fund 

(LGF) data returns 

• LEP APR return (Annex A)  

• LEP compliance checks and Mid-Year Reviews in 2022 

 

3.14 The “Met” rating was achieved across all three themes - Governance; Delivery 

and Strategic Impact – with “Met” being the highest rating that can currently be 

achieved. Cumbria LEP is on the “streamlined” assurance tier, and as such is 

subject to a light touch process, which might not require a formal Annual 

performance review meeting. Confirmation of this is still awaited.  

 

Annual General Meeting 

 

3.15 The LEP’s Annual General Meeting, which is a key aspect of the LEP’s wider 

assurance process to stakeholders and the public, has been arranged for Friday 29 

September 2023 at 2.00pm. This will follow a similar format to previous years with 

the event providing an open invitation to stakeholders and the general public.   

 

 

3.16 The LEP Scrutiny Board is invited to note this report and raise any 

issues relating to this.  

17



This page is intentionally left blank



LEP STRATEGY UPDATE  

 

1. ISSUE 

 

1.1  Updating the LEP Scrutiny Board on Cumbria LEP’s (CLEP’s) strategy work.   

 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 

 

2.1 That the LEP Scrutiny Board: 

 

a) note this report; and  

 

b) provide comment on the Apprenticeship Strategy, which is provided at 

Annex A.   

 

3. BACKGROUND 

 

3.1 LEPs are assessed by Government against three main themes – governance, 

strategy and delivery. This report is focused on the strategy theme and provides an 

update on the LEP’s current strategic priorities.  

 

3.2 Work continues on implementing the strategy documents that the LEP 

Scrutiny Panel has previously considered including the Clean Energy Strategy, 

Business Decarbonisation 10 Point Plan, Sector Plans and Restart, Reboot, Rethink. 

However, the Scrutiny Board has previously expressed particular interest in the work 

that the LEP is doing to address Cumbria’s acute labour and skills challenges and as 

such this report majors on this and provides a copy of the draft Apprenticeship 

Strategy, for comment.   

 

Apprenticeship Strategy 

 

3.3 Members of CLEP’s People, Employment and Skills Strategy Group (PESSG) 

recognised the need to develop an Apprenticeship Strategy for Cumbria to provide 

clarity and direction as to what Cumbria wanted to achieve in relation to these. The 

rationale for this was to ensure that activity undertaken was complementary and that 

partners were not looking to progress activities that were mutually exclusive.  

 

3.4 The production of this strategy was therefore included in the Labour Supply 

Action Plan recognising the importance of this in developing our future workforce.  

This is because apprenticeships play a significant role in all areas, but particularly in 

Cumbria, which has historically had one of the highest participation rates in the 

country, reflecting our economic structure.  

 

19

Agenda Item 8



3.5 Production of the strategy was delayed whilst awaiting the DfE apprentice 

data for 2021/2022, as this was necessary to provide a more realistic assessment of 

demand, following the pandemic.  

  

3.6 The draft Apprenticeship Strategy has now been prepared and is provided at 

Annex A. This will be considered by the People, Employment and Skills Strategy 

Group at its meeting on 17 February 2023, prior to a stakeholder consultation event 

on 13 March 2023. The final draft will then be presented to the Board at its meeting 

on 31 March 2023.  

 

3.7 The LEP Scrutiny Board is invited to review the Strategy and provide 

comment on this.  

 

Labour Supply Action Plan 

 

3.8 The People, Employment and Skills Strategy Group agreed a Labour Supply 

Action Plan in February 2022 with the following 10 themes forming the basis of the 

Plan: 

1. Growing the Labour Pool 

2. Retain Our Future Talent 

3. Affordable and Available Housing Supply  

4. Improve Transport Connectivity 

5. Address Systemic Issues 

6. Great Place to Work 

7. Upskilling and Reskilling the Workforce 

8. Address the Productivity ‘Opportunity’ 

9. Develop an Apprenticeship Strategy 

10. Promote Cumbria’s skills and learning offer 

 

3.9 Work continues on the implementation of the Plan, with the focus of recent 

activity being: 

 

• Refugees – the formation of a specific Working Group to address the barriers 

to employment for refugees with a focus on streamlining the process and 

addressing barriers to employment. 

 

• Data Analysis – securing a better understanding of those, who have exited 

the labour market with a view to encouraging them back into employment. 

The initial findings from this work was presented to the Labour Supply 

Working Group.  

 

• Housing Supply – developing an Action Plan and implementing a Working 

Group to refine and prioritise this.  

 

20



• Skills Bootcamp – securing new organisations to support the delivery of this 

programme, which is designed to meet the needs of the economy and 

businesses and identifying the priority needs for delivery in 2023/24. 

 

• Productivity – progressing the Innovating for Success programme, which is 

designed to foster innovation as a mechanism to address productivity and 

reduce labour demand.  

 

• Our Future/Your Future Campaigns – refining the updated campaigns to 

ensure that these will have the necessary reach and deliver the priorities of 

attracting and retaining talent.  

 

3.10 There was a very productive first meeting of the Refugee Employability 

Working Group. The key actions that are now being taken forward from this are: 

 

• Employer Understanding – CLEP to undertake activity to educate 

employers as to what they can and can’t do on employing refugees. 

 

• Promotional Campaign – CLEP to develop ‘reference sell’ with businesses, 

which had successfully employed refugees. 

 

• Our Future/Your Future Campaigns – CLEP to integrate refugees into these 

campaigns to demonstrate integration. 

 

• Data/Intelligence – CCC to continue the work on developing the evidence 

base, bringing CLEP in, as required. 

 

• Incubator/Escalators – all members to provide suggestions on placements 

that would increase the employability of refugees. 

 

• United for Ukraine – CLEP to work with Greater Manchester Growth 

Company to explore the experience and outcomes from using the site and 

how it might be further developed.  

 

• Letter to Top 10 employers – CLEP to write to the largest businesses to 

invite them to ‘lead by example’ on refugee employment.  

 

3.11 On the Housing Supply work, Lichfield’s has produced a draft Strategy 

document for CLEP, which will be shared with the Leaders, Portfolio Holders and 

lead officers of the new authorities, outlining the key issues in relation to ‘right 

product, right place, right price.’  

 

21



3.12 The vision for CLEP’s document is “To stimulate and sustain economic 

opportunity across all of Cumbria by facilitating the delivery of more high quality 

homes that are attractive and affordable to younger households in places they want 

to live.  This will boost the local labour force into the longer term and ensure 

Cumbria’s economy remains sustainable and vibrant by providing the right housing 

product, in the right place, at the right price.”  In order to deliver the vision the 

strategy has five objectives:  

 

• Increasing Housing Supply  

 

• Making the Housing Offer More Attractive and Affordable to Younger 

Residents  

 

• Managing the Impact of Second Homes  

 

• Housing Seasonal and Temporary Workers  

 

• Facilitate and Support the Reorganisation of the Local Government 

 

3.13 CLEP is clearly not a statutory housing authority and as such is focused on 

how it can support Local Authority colleagues to deliver their statutory functions. The 

document therefore identifies a series of actions that CLEP can deliver or support 

the delivery of, to help the new authorities deliver on their statutory responsibilities. A 

copy of the draft Housing Strategy document is available, on request.  

 

Implementing the Rethink Themes 

 

3.14 Members are aware that CLEP identified six rethink themes on which 

Cumbria had a competitive advantage and which went with the grain of policy and 

investment. These are: 

 

• Clean Energy Production – a world-recognised heritage and expertise which 

provides the platform for significant future investment in energy generation.  

 

• Diversify to Thrive – building on the pivoting that has taken place and 

moving it to the next level in terms of localisation of supply chains, movement 

into new markets and extending inward investment. 

 

• The New Visitor Experience – capturing the changes in sustainable visitor 

behaviour by offering a world class experience to a wide range of markets.  

 

• The Future of Food – identifying opportunities to respond to new and 

changing opportunities building on Cumbria’s existing meat and dairy 

22



excellence. 

 

• Cumbria, The UK’s Natural Capital – promoting and exploiting the benefits 

created by having the most protected landscape in England. 

 

• The Way We Live, The Way We Work Now - benefitting from the rethink that 

people are making about their lives and the way that they will live and work in 

the future. 

 

3.15 Over the past six-month period work on all themes has continued with 

significant activity on Clean Energy generation, increasingly considering hydrogen 

opportunities. Alongside the focus on this the LEP has prioritised two themes for 

concentrated activity – the Future of Food and Natural Capital. A short update on 

each of these is therefore provided.  

 

Future of Food 

 

3.16 CLEP has appointed MetroDynamics to support it in developing the Future of 

Food workstream. This has resulted in the consideration of five trends - changing 

diets, climate change and the push for net zero, technological development, new 

trading relationships, and government funding and planning. A common theme 

across all five of these is food security. In each case there are issues that may 

impact food security, where Cumbria had the ability to respond. 

 

3.17 MetroDynamics is currently assessing the following eleven developments to 

identify those that are most relevant to Cumbria:  

 

• Using land for food production and environment good: developing options to  

pilot mixed land-use in suitable areas for pastoral/forestry and harvesting  

renewable energy.   

• Reducing emissions in food production: for example through methane-

reducing feedstock.   

• Developing Cumbria’s high-quality, distinctive market, potentially through  

cooperatives and/or increasing premium and organic offer, to capture and  

market the value of what Cumbria does best.   

• Utilising livestock breeding technologies to accelerate desirable traits.   

• Internet of things - wearable and monitoring devices for livestock to support  

farmers in managing and maintaining the health of livestock.   

• Vertical Farming to diversify the Cumbrian food market without requiring 

traditional arable land.   

• Genetic modification of breeds or animal feed to improve yields.   

• Developing shared bids to trial new technologies, potentially through 

underwritten pilots.   

23



• Targeted export promotion to take capitalise on lower tariffs for specific 

exported products.   

• Establishing networks to share best practice, lobbying government to 

incentivise food production, influencing the farming policy agenda.   

• Capitalising on benefits from local government reorganisation, influencing 

spatial planning to improve the use of land.   

 

3.18 To decide on the ideas with the most potential for impact, and the most 

grounded case for development, a framework has been produced, with each strand 

being assessed against this. The results of this work will be presented to the Rural 

Sector Panel when it meets on 3 March 2023. 

 

Natural Capital 

 

3.19 Lord Inglewood has hosted two roundtable sessions with major landowners to 

explore how Cumbria’s exceptional natural capital could be better commercialised for 

the benefit of the economy, businesses and citizens.  

 

3.20 Stephen Nicol has been working with the Executive to develop a proposal for 

taking this work forward, in particular exploring whether the LEP could provide a 

matching function to link investable propositions with businesses looking for 

offsetting opportunities. The LEP Chair has agreed that funding should be provided 

to pump-prime this work. An update on the developing proposal is due to be 

presented to the CLEP Board at its March meeting.  

 

3.21 The LEP Scrutiny Board is invited to note this report and raise any 

issues relating to this or any other strategic priorities being delivered by the 

LEP.  

24



Cumbria Apprenticeship Strategy

2023

25



1. Executive Summary 3

2. Purpose of the strategy 4

3. What are apprenticeships 5

4. National context and policy developments 7

5. Labour market and skills context for Cumbria 9

6. How apprenticeships have evolved in Cumbria and how they are operating 13

7. Key issues and opportunities  19

8. Recommendations 20

Appendix A: Data analysis 22

CONTENT

26



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 3

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Apprenticeships are a critical part of the skills and talent development infrastructure in Cumbria. 
We can be proud of the many strengths of the apprenticeship system in Cumbria. Every year 
around 2,000 people complete apprenticeships across the county adding to the supply of skills 
focussed on employers’ needs. 

Cumbria has one of the highest rates of entry into and participation in apprenticeships especially 
for those aged 16 to 20. This reflects our traditions in education and training, our industrial structure 
and the quality and esteem held in much of the provision for apprenticeships.

Our economy and labour market is facing considerable turbulence, profound changes and 
future challenges and opportunities, especially in terms of the fall in the workforce and changing 
skills needs, with a growing need for higher level skills. There is a critical role for apprenticeships 

It is appropriate to have a fresh look at how the apprenticeship system is operating in Cumbria 
set against these new labour market and skills challenges. Although there is much that is excellent 
about how apprenticeships operate in Cumbria there is scope for change to improve the system.

Overall we are seeking to develop and refine the system to:

•  Develop the workforce skills needed by Cumbria’s economy and businesses in the future 
by creating high quality opportunities to develop, attract and retain skills in Cumbria

• Contribute to enhancing diversity and social mobility.

Although participation rates in apprenticeships are relatively high there are still a substantial 
minority of young people leaving full time study aged 18 or 19 into employment without structured 
training and so considerable scope to increase the numbers engaged in apprenticeships and still 
see increases in participation in higher education. 

The areas for future focus suggested in the strategy are:

Improving participation in 
apprenticeships overall

Developing more apprenticeships in skill areas 
where they are under-represented

•  Increase representation by gender of 
apprenticeships in some subject areas

•  Increase uptake of apprenticeships in 
older age groups

•  Enhance apprenticeships as a route to 
encourage greater social mobility and 
diversity in the workforce

•  Promote level 2 and level 3 
apprenticeships

•  Encourage and promote the Provider 
Access Legislation (PAL) as a route 
to school children and students 
considering apprenticeships

•  Hospitality/visitor economy

•  Digital

Improving the delivery of apprenticeships in 
Cumbria
•  Reduce drop-out rates and increase successful 

completion

•  Enable all businesses to access apprenticeships 
across the county via collaboration

•  Involve our retiring workers in the apprenticeship 
programmes

Improving preparation for apprenticeships and 
readiness for work
•  Work with schools and colleges to improve the 

readiness for work skills of apprentices

27



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 4

2. PURPOSE OF THE STRATEGY 

The development of apprenticeships has 
been a key plank of the national approach 
to skills development. Apprenticeships 
have been and are a particularly important 
component of skills development for young 
people in Cumbria.  They are a key route to 
qualifications and an entry point in to careers.

Cumbria has historically and continues to have 
had one of the highest participation rates in 
apprenticeships in the country, reflecting our 
economic structure, traditions and strong 
vocational training infrastructure. 

The Cumbria Skills Advisory Panel (SAP) 
produced a Local Skills Report in early 2022. 
This highlighted the current and future skills 
challenges facing the economy findings.

We are in a period of very rapid economic and 
labour market change driven by the unfolding 
of Brexit, the response to the global pandemic, 
the war in Ukraine and cost of living crisis and 
rapid changes in technology. These changes 
have occurred against a long term backcloth 
of a declining workforce across Cumbria, 
creating particularly acute stresses and strains 
in the supply of skills. 

This is why, now more than ever, developing 
and retaining strong skills in our economy, 
creating a workforce fit for the future through 
early careers and apprenticeships and 
growing our talent is essential. 

The LSIP (Local Skills Improvement Plan) has 
also highlighted the importance of apprenticeships, especially from an employers perspective 
and the needs to improve employability skills.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, many apprenticeships were disrupted and unable to operate as 
they would do normally for health and safety reasons. Now is a good time to take stock of the 
role of apprenticeships in the supply of skills in Cumbria and as a way of developing our talent.  

This strategy is designed to assist businesses, providers and stakeholders with a local economic 
interest in skills and around labour supply.

The strategy has been developed by the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (CLEP) and agreed 
with key stakeholder groups including the People, Employment and Skills Group (PESSG). The 
strategy is intended to align with complementary strategies such as the Local Skills Report 2022. 
Skills Report 2022 and respond to the priorities identified in the Local Skills Improvement Plan. 

28



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 5

3. WHAT ARE APPRENTICESHIPS 

Apprenticeships have a long and noble history and tradition and have been a feature of learning 
and skills development in England since the Middle Ages and even earlier. They have evolved 
over time toward a more structured and qualifications based approach to learning. New levels 
of apprenticeships have been introduced and the previous age limit of 25 was withdrawn in the 
2000s.

Apprenticeships are a model of learning that combine practical training in a job with study. In 
England apprenticeships are available to anyone over the age of 16 not in full time education; 
although employers set different entry requirements depending on the sector and job. They take 
between one and six years to complete. As of September 2022 over 800 different apprenticeships 
were available.

The apprenticeship model relies on three parties working together as follows:

•  Apprentice – an individual with a desire to work, learn and develop to national standards

•  Employer – responsible for funding, supporting and upskilling the apprentice 

•  Provider – who works with the apprentice and employer to ensure scope and provision to 
support the apprenticeship.  

It is crucial that all three of these stakeholders are interdependent and collaborative to ensure 
success and that the providers especially, respond to skills opportunities and challenges.

Apprenticeships have different levels which are equivalent to academic educational levels (as 
shown in Table 3.1).

Table 3.1: Apprenticeships levels

Type Level Equivalent educational level

Intermediate 2 GCSE

Advanced 3 A Level

Higher 4, 5, 6 and 7 Foundation degree and above

Degree 6 and 7 Bachelor’s or Master’s degree

Some apprenticeships may also provide individuals with additional qualifications such as a 
diploma.

There are several minimum requirements for any apprenticeships:

•  They must last for at least 12 months (based on an apprentice working at least 30 hours per 
week, including time training away from the workplace)

•  They must include off-the-job training (received by the apprentice during their normal working 
hours)1 

•  Employers must offer apprentices a contract of service

•  Apprentices must be provided with training in English and maths if they do not hold a level 2 
qualification in both subjects

•  Apprentices have to take an independent (end-point) assessment at the end of their 
apprenticeship, which assesses the knowledge, skills and behaviours they have developed 
whilst in the apprenticeship.

29



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 6

Apprenticeships are paid - unlike the vast majority of higher and further education students2. 
Apprentices are paid for both their normal working hours and the time they spend training as 
part of their apprenticeship. Apprentices are entitled to the same employment rights as other 
employees, including holiday entitlement and maternity leave.

All apprentices now work to national standards, which outline what an apprentice will be doing 
in a particular apprenticeship, and the skills that are required of them. Apprenticeship standards 
were introduced from September 2014 and now apply to all new starters3. 

Higher and degree apprenticeships are delivering the higher skills that are required for economic 
growth, for example Project Management, Accounting and Nuclear and Engineering. This is an 
important route to be encouraged as it is a way of retaining our workforce within Cumbria, rather 
than losing them in order to gain a higher-level qualification elsewhere through University, as 
an example. Whilst there is recognition that there will always be people leaving the county for 
different reasons, higher and degree level apprentice offerings in Cumbria could help to catch 
people before they leave. In order to assist with this, progression routes and opportunities should 
be clear and standardised where possible.

Entry requirements vary depending on the employer and the role. Level 2 and 3 apprenticeships, 
also known as intermediate and higher, generally do not require formal qualifications, however 
it is normally expected that a functional skills module will need to be taken as part of the 
apprenticeship if individuals do not have GCSEs in English and Maths.

Higher and degree apprenticeships are delivering the higher skills that are required for economic 
growth, for example Project Management, Accounting and Nuclear and Engineering. This is an 
important route to be encouraged as it is a way of retaining our workforce within Cumbria, rather 
than losing them in order to gain a higher-level qualification elsewhere through University, as 
an example. Whilst there is recognition that there will always be people leaving the county for 
different reasons, higher and degree level apprentice offerings in Cumbria could help to catch 
people before they leave. In order to assist with this, progression routes and opportunities should 
be clear and standardised where possible.

Entry requirements vary depending on the employer and the role. Level 2 and 3 apprenticeships, 
also known as intermediate and higher, generally do not require formal qualifications, however 
it is normally expected that a functional skills module will need to be taken as part of the 
apprenticeship if individuals do not have GCSEs in English and Maths.

As from 2022/23 this minimum amount is either 6 hours or more of their usual working hours on off-the job training, or at least 20% of their working time if 
this is less than 6 hours

  Apprentices aged 16-18 are entitled to the apprentice minimum wage (currently £4.81 an hour). Apprentices aged 19 and over are also entitled to 
the apprentice minimum wage in the first year of their apprenticeship. After this, they are entitled to the relevant National Minimum Wage rate for their 
age group

  They replaced the previous apprenticeships frameworks 

30



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 7

4.  NATIONAL CONTEXT AND 
POLICY DEVELOPMENTS

Funding

The UK government provides apprenticeship funding for employers, marking a significant 
commitment to getting more young people into employment. Apprenticeship programmes are 
important to the UK in ensuring a learning structure and valuable work experience opportunities 
are in place to help nurture skills and foster future leaders in business.

Introduced in April 2017 as part of the government’s apprenticeship reforms, the Apprenticeship 
Levy is a tax on any UK employers with an annual pay bill of over £3 million each year2. The Levy 
is  required to fund apprenticeships, support business productivity and grow quality vocational 
training and employment. The Apprenticeship Levy is charged at 0.5% of the employer’s annual 
pay bill. 

Businesses can only use the levy funds in their account to pay for apprenticeship training and 
assessment for apprentices within their business. However, businesses do have the option to 
transfer up to 5% of their Levy funds to support apprenticeship training in other organisations. 

The rules for apprenticeships started since 2022 are as follows:

•  Each apprenticeship standard is associated with a funding band. The upper limit of this 
band3 represents the maximum the government will contribute towards training and 
assessment costs of the apprenticeship.

• Employers and training providers negotiate a price for training and assessment.

•  Apprenticeship levy funds are used to pay for the training and assessment for employers 
paying the levy (up to the upper limit of the funding band), if the costs of training are 
higher than the funding band this has to be met by the employer from outside the levy 
account

•  Employers who do not pay the levy pay 5% of the cost of training and assessment with the 
government contributing the remaining 95% (up to the upper limit of the funding band)4. 

Note: the levy and government funding does not pay for the wage of the apprentice, this has to 
be met in full by the employer. 

2.  It raised £3.3 billion in 2022/23 across England

3.  There are 30 different funding bands, with the upper limits of these bands ranging from £1,500 to £27,000

4.  They can also use levy funds that have been transferred to them by a levy paying employer, although these will need to cover 100% of the training 

and assessment costs

31



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 8

National issues with the apprenticeship system

There has been considerable debate about how well the system works for employers and the 
wider economy (against a backcloth of reduction in starts since the levy was introduced)5. These 
include:

•  The increase in the number of higher level starts has led to concerns about the cost and 
that professional development programmes are being rebadged as apprenticeships.

•  The complexity and inflexibility of the levy is a concern of many employers

•  The amount of funding for SMEs employers has been a constraint to access

•  Nationally, the quality of some of the apprenticeship provision is poor and certainly poorer 
than classroom-based FE provision6. 

•  The dropout rate from apprenticeships is high (roughly 50%) and many apprenticeships 
report concerns about quality as a reason for their drop out7.

•  In some cases, the lack of preparedness for work of apprentices who are entering the 
workplace is a concern.

These are concerns reported nationally most of them are likely to apply in Cumbria as well.

Recent policy developments relevant to apprenticeships 

A regulation has been introduced which is called Provider Access Legislation, known as 
PAL. It specifies that schools must provide at least six encounters with approved providers of 
apprenticeships and technical education for all students, throughout the stages of secondary 
school. This is a key mechanism in helping learners understand apprenticeship and technical 
options, such as T-Levels and Higher Education.  

T-Levels were introduced in September 2020 and will be fully rolled out by September 2023. They are 
intended to become one of the main choices for students after GCSEs alongside apprenticeships, 
A levels and some other qualifications not served by A levels or T levels. They provide full time study 
but with extended work placements. They may reduce the numbers accessing apprenticeships 
at the age of 16. 

 

5.  Sourced from a useful summary by the House of Commons Library: “Apprenticeships Policy in England”, Andrew Powell, January 2023 

6.  https://apprenticeshipdata.co.uk/ofsted-provision-grades/ 

7.  “No train, no gain An investigation into the quality of apprenticeships in England”, EDSK, November 2022

32



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 9

5.  LABOUR MARKET AND SKILLS CONTEXT 
FOR CUMBRIA

Since 2018 Skills Advisory Panels (SAPs) have been bringing together employers, skills providers and 
other key stakeholders to understand the skills dynamics at local and national levels. Cumbria LEP 
has convened the Cumbria Skills Advisory Panel which produced a Local Skills Report in January 
2022 (LSR, 2022) that summarised the evidence base on skills for the county. Later that year 
Cumbria Chamber of Commerce developed a Local Skills Improvement Plan that drew on the 
employer perspective on skills.

Since early 2022 there have been some developments on the skills and labour market front in 
Cumbria, but the essential message, challenges and opportunities remain the same. 

The principal issues are summarised in Table 5.1, these are drawn from the LSR and other work by 
Cumbria LEP.

Table 5.1: Key Labour market and Skills Issues in Cumbria

Key issue Explanation

Declining 
workforce…

…and current 
extreme shortages of 
workers

For some time, a looming labour supply constraints on Cumbria’s 
economy has been identified. This is due to the declining population 
of working age (see Figure 5.1); this is forecast to fall by 6% (17,000 
over the next 10 years). The declines are expected to be particularly 
acute in Barrow and Copeland. The fall in WAP will, to some degree, 
be offset by potential rises in economic activity rates for those aged 
55+, but not enough to offset the fall in population of working age.

Prior to the pandemic, the challenge of potential future declines in 
the workforce in all parts of Cumbria was clear, but still some way off.

As a result of changes driven by the pandemic, withdrawal of existing 
workers from the labour market8 and the impacts of EU-Exit on migrant 
labour supply, these forecasted labour supply shortages became 
manifest in Cumbria in a very acute way starting in the second half of 
2021. 

By the end of 2021 labour shortages had emerged across most 
of the economy, with the most acute current skills and labour 
gaps in hospitality, adult social care, health sector, logistics and 
manufacturing. As of early 2023, these labour shortages remain 
(although they may diminish during 2023 due to the looming 
economic recession). 

Issue of low 
productivity across 
much of the 
economy

Labour productivity in Cumbria is, on average between 17% to 19% 
below the national average9. There is a major gap in most sectors. 
Low productivity is linked to below average wages across most parts 
of the economy. There is a very strong link between skills levels and 
wages and productivity. 

8.  Nationally there has been a very substantial fall in economic activity in those aged 55 and over as a result of Covid

9.  2019 pre-pandemic data for GVA (smoothed) per hours worked and job filled respectively.

33



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 10

Table 5.1: Key Labour market and Skills Issues in Cumbria

Key issue Explanation
Need to develop 
and engage greater 
higher level skills in 
the workforce

Related to the above point about low productivity, across much of 
the Cumbrian economy, especially in private sector businesses and 
sectors, there are relatively low levels of workers with higher level skills 
in absolute and percentage terms. This is less true in public sector 
occupations and sectors. Overall, the level of residents of working age 
with NVQ level 4 or equivalent or higher qualifications in Cumbria is 
one of the lowest in the UK (about 20% below the national average10).

Meeting changing 
skills needs driven by 
shifts in the economy 
and the workforce

The LSR also identified changes in skills requirements within and across 
sectors that are and will emerge over the next decade including:
•     The need for enhanced digital skills across all ages and areas of 

the economy;
•     The need for new and enhanced skills in respect of clean energy, 

shifts in environmental land management and application of 
technology

Low wages, low 
skills and low labour 
market participation 
in some areas

The labour market and skills issues are not spread evenly across 
the county. There are stubborn pockets of lower labour market 
participation (i.e. higher levels of economic inactivity/worklessness) 
which are associated with lower skills and qualifications in parts of 
Cumbria (and educational performance). This is particularly the case 
in parts of Barrow, larger towns on the west coast and in Carlisle. 
There is also an issue with stubbornly high levels and rates of youth 
unemployment (18 to 24) compared to national rates in Barrow and 
some other parts of Cumbria.

Youth 
Unemployment

Youth unemployment, particularly for Barrow, Copeland and Allerdale 
is high for ages 18-24.

Figure 5.1: Change in working age population, 2022 to 2032

10  Around 35% compared to 38% in the North West and 42% across Great Britain (average 209 to 2021 from the Annual Population Survey).

34



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 11

This backcloth is relevant for considering the future path of apprenticeships and their role in 
supporting the economy of Cumbria. There are three specific factors that are especially important 
to considering the future of apprenticeships; the change in the potential supply of younger 
people entering the labour market; the attractiveness of other routes post 16 or 18 (especially 
traditional higher education); and retirement by sector and occupation.

On the future supply of labour, within the overall steady decline in those of working age in 
Cumbria there are different movements in the numbers of young people of working age that are 
largely determined by historic demographic change. As Figure 5.2 shows, from 2022 onwards the 
number of young people aged 16 to 19 (the prime age at which people start apprenticeships 
in Cumbria) is actually expected to rise by 8% to peak in 2028 (by when it will be 21,700 or 1,600 
above 2022 levels). However, after 2028, the number of young people in this age group will start 
to decline although numbers will continue to rise in the 20 to 24 year olds.

Figure 5.2: Population change by age

   Source: ONS Sub-National projections 2018-based

35



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 12

Previous work carried out in 2020, which is in the process of being updated in 2023, identified 
that across Cumbria employers were looking to replace over 86,000 job roles over the 10-year 
period 2017 to 202711 (i.e. at a rate of 8,600 a year) as a result of people leaving the workforce 
(i.e. replacement demand for retirement and other causes). The following occupations were 
previously identified as having above average forecasts of replacement demand:

•  Managers and directors

•  Health professionals, plus health and social care associate professionals

•  Teaching and educational professionals

•  Business, media, and public service professionals

•  Skilled agricultural and related trades 

•  Caring personal service occupations

•  Leisure, travel, and related personal service occupations

•  Transport and mobile machine drivers and operatives.

Participation in higher education (aged 19) has an important impact on entries into apprenticeships.  
The progression rate in Cumbria has consistently lagged behind England (which would be 
expected given the high level of Apprenticeship rates).  The rate in Cumbria increased from 
33.7% in 2010/11 to 37.3% in 2020/21 but the gap to England has widened over the past decade 
(which has gone from 35.1% up to 44.4%). The progression rate was 96% of the England rate in 
2010/11 but had fallen to 84% of the England rate by 2020/21.  Over that period, the cohort aged 
19 in Cumbria fell by 21.5% and the number of HE students fell by 13.3%. 

11  Working Futures 2017-2027: Long-run labour market and skills projections for the UK

36



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 13

6. HOW APPRENTICESHIPS HAVE EVOLVED IN 
CUMBRIA AND HOW THEY ARE OPERATING

Appendix A provides a detailed analysis of the available data on apprenticeships in Cumbria 
and its local areas as well as putting this in national context. This section summarises the key points.

Overall entry and participation levels

The most recent data relates to the 2021/22 academic year (August to July). In this year, there 
were 3,860 starts on apprenticeship programmes by Cumbrian residents and there were 9,755 
active participants during the year (i.e. including those who started in an earlier year). The 
number of starts has fallen by 11% compared to pre-pandemic levels (4,335 in 2018/19) in line 
with the national fall. The number of starts on apprenticeships is well above the national rate; 
depending on how it is measured it is 40% to 50% higher than the England average. The number 
of participants in apprenticeships is even higher than the England average (by 70% to 80%) 
reflecting that on average those starting in apprenticeships remain apprentices for longer than 
the England average.

Apprenticeships are a particularly well established destination for those leaving school age 16 
(KS4) with the entry rate being 7.8% of that age compared to just 2.4% across England and 3.2% 
in the North West. For those who remain in full time education to aged 18 apprentices are also 
an important route with 14% choosing apprenticeships compared to 6.4% in England and 7.3% in 
the North West.

These above average entry and participation rates are shown in Figure 3. This shows that 
apprenticeships are a particularly important route in Cumbria for those aged 16 to 19 i.e. leaving 
secondary education. In fact, the rate of starts of those aged 25 to 65 in Cumbria is slightly lower 
than the national rate. However, this reflects the greater success of the apprenticeship system in 
attracting younger people aged 16 to 24 in Cumbria. It does suggest that there might be some 
room to increase rates of starts in those aged over 24 to reach national levels.

37



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 14

Figure 6.1: Rates of participation in apprenticeships, 2021/22 relative to England 
average

  Source: analysis of DfE Localities Cube data

There are important variations across Cumbria in the rates of entry into apprenticeships with rates of 
entry being particularly high in Barrow and Copeland reflecting the importance of key employers 
in providing apprenticeships and the industrial traditions of these areas. However, all parts of 
Cumbria have above average rates of those leaving school at 16 going into apprenticeship and 
all areas bar Eden have above average rates of those post 16-18 education. 

This high “market share” and degree of interest in apprenticeships has long been a feature in 
Cumbria. Previous work has identified a number of reasons for this overall key role:

•  The industrial structure of (parts) of Cumbria

•  A long tradition of apprenticeships and key role of major firms providing apprenticeships 
leading to well paid jobs

•  Therefore, increased  awareness by young people and their parents of the route into work.

What sectors and skills areas

There are particular areas of strength in the number of apprenticeships in Cumbria. The vast 
majority of apprenticeships starts (around 90% overall) are in five broad areas:

•  Engineering & manufacturing, 980 starts (25%)

•  Business, finance and administration, 760 starts (20%)

•  Health, Public Services & Care, 830 starts (21%)

•  Building and Construction, 570 starts (15%)

•  Retail & Hospitality and catering, 290 starts (8%).

38



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 15

At a national level, these five groups account for a similar share (87%) however the distribution 
is very different. Cumbria stands out in having relative high shares of starts in manufacturing, 
engineering and construction (40% overall) compared to England (22%), whereas relative low 
shares in health and care, business & admin and retail/commercial (49% compared to 66% 
nationally). The pattern of apprenticeships starts at a broad level map reasonably well onto the 
industrial structure of the economy – with above average shares also starting in agriculture and 
animal care. The area of Cumbria’s economic focus that is not well represented in apprenticeships 
is our visitor economy sector. Overall in 2021/22 there were 30 starts in leisure tourism and travel 
and a further 130 in hospitality and catering, still overall just 4% of starts. In contrast around 17% 
of all Cumbria’s jobs are in accommodation and food services and in arts, culture and leisure. 
Furthermore, the number of starts has been falling in this subject area by more than the overall 
decline in starts.

The share of starts in ICT subjects is also particularly low at just 2%. However, in  this case this is 
reflective of the current economic structure of Cumbria.

Figure 6.2: Starts in apprenticeships by broad subject area, 2021/22 relative to 
England average

  Source: analysis of DfE Localities Cube data

39



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 16

Engagement in apprenticeships by prior attainment levels

It is possible to analyse starts by prior attainment level. In 2021/22 38% of all those starting 
apprenticeships in Cumbria had achieved the equivalent of A levels or higher qualifications, 
this had risen from just 26% in 2017/18 reflecting the growth in Advanced and Higher level 
apprenticeships. The number (and %) stating with just Level 1 qualifications had fallen by nearly 
50% and the proportion from 31% to 19%. This shift can be interpreted in one of two ways: that it is 
becoming harder for those with lesser academic level of achievement to enter apprenticeships 
(who are more likely to be from disadvantaged backgrounds); or that the “quality” of the intake 
has improved. 

Figure 6.3: Starts by prior attainment, 2017/18 and 2021/22

  Source: analysis of DfE Localities Cube data

40



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 17

Engagement in apprenticeships by gender

At a national level there are slightly more women (51%), who start in apprenticeships than men 
(49%) however, this is reversed in Cumbria where males starts are 54% of the total. This indicates 
that, in relative terms, the apprenticeship route is slightly less popular for women than men in 
Cumbria. This is likely to reflect the traditional gender focus in the apprenticeships subjects that 
are most successful in Cumbria. Figure 6 shows the pattern of starts by gender. Generally, Cumbria 
follows the national picture which is for quite strong variations by subject area and gender. What 
is striking is that in most subjects in Cumbria the gender differences are more pronounced than 
nationally; a higher %age of starts in the more “female focussed subjects” (health, education 
training and business admin) and a low share of female starts in ICT, agriculture (more “male 
focussed subjects”). The exception is in engineering and manufacturing where the 17% of starts 
who are women is significantly higher than the 10% nationally. However, it is still the case that 
this subject area accounts for just 10% of all female starts compared to 40% for males starts in 
Cumbria.

Figure 6.4: Gender by starts by broad subject, 2021/22

  Source: analysis of DfE Localities Cube data

41



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 18

Participation by other characteristics

The evidence set out in Appendix A suggests that in Cumbria the patterns of starts follows the 
pattern of ethnicity and also that the proportion of those starting an apprenticeships with a self-
reported “learning difficulty, disability or health problem” at 13% is somewhat higher than the 
national average.

How successful are apprenticeships?

There is limited robust data on the achievement rate of apprenticeships (in terms of entry into 
good quality work or achievement of the qualifications) in Cumbria.

At a national level we know that in 2020/21 the overall achievement rate was 58% (down on 65% 
in 2018/19)12. An analysis of the data shows that apprenticeships tend to have very high pass rates 
for frameworks and standards for those who reach this stage. The key issues is the high dropout 
rate for apprenticeships (around 50% nationally).

We know in 2021/22 that there were 1,840 apprenticeships achievements in Cumbria and there 
were 3,630 recorded leavers. This represents a crude achievement or success rate of around 50%. 
This rate appears to be lower than the national rate stated above and also to have been falling 
over time (from 69% in 2017/18). There is some variation in this achievement rate by level, with the 
rate lowest for Level 2 apprenticeships.

This finding is surprising given the well-established training infrastructure for apprenticeships, the 
tradition and experience and number of larger employers engaged with apprenticeships. We 
would have expected the completion rates would outperform the England picture. However, 
there are limitations in the data and it is not possible to make a direct comparison with the 
national picture. We do not know the variation by subject area or prior educational level of 
apprentices. It is also possible the many apprentices do not finish their apprenticeships for positive 
reason (getting a well-paid job with training, accessing higher education etc). 

Figure 6.5: Cumbria apprenticeships achievement rates, 2017/18 and 2021/22

  Source: analysis of DfE Localities Cube data

12  https://apprenticeshipdata.co.uk/insights/ 

42



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 19

7. KEY ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES

The key points from the analysis of apprenticeships data [and consultations] are:

1.  Apprenticeships have and will continue to have a very important role in Cumbria in 
supplying skills needed by employers and the economy. Compared to most other parts 
of England they play a particularly important role especially in the Barrow and Copeland 
areas, but across the county; they are of course only one route by which these skills are 
developed.

2.  In broad terms the pattern of apprenticeships by subject and sector appears to fit well with 
the current and likely future skills needs of the economy at an overall Cumbria level. It is 
however difficult to match precisely subject areas for apprenticeships and occupational/
sector labour supply needs, so this conclusion needs to be caveated. It is also the case 
that at local labour market area level the alignment may be less close.

3.  There is, however, a notable lack of apprenticeship starts and participants in skills areas 
linked to the visitor economy, especially given its importance in Cumbria. 

4.  Also the level of apprenticeships in ICT subjects is very low (2% compared to 6% nationally)  
- which is likely to reflect the lack of the presence of this sector in the Cumbrian economy 
but does not help the long term ambitions to transform the economy and enhance digital 
skills.

5.  There are four areas where there is a prima facie opportunity to extend participation in 
apprenticeship:

 a.  First, in terms of gender, the pattern in Cumbria is particularly skewed with relatively 
low participation of women in the more traditionally “male” subject areas and men 
in “female” subject areas. 

 b.  Second, there are signs that those with poorer academic qualifications who 
may come from more disadvantaged backgrounds are less able to access 
apprenticeships13. 

 c.  Third, although participation in apprenticeships is high in the 16 to 19 year olds there 
is evidence that the rate of take up in older adults (25 plus) is lower than average 
in Cumbria. In part this reflects the success in terms of access in earlier ages, and 
in part the low rates of adult unemployment. It may also reflect a reluctance of 
older adults in Cumbria to engage in what is perceived as something designed for 
younger people.

 d.  Fourth, a significant proportion of leavers from 16-18 study enter employment rather 
than apprenticeships or education (23% compared to 21% in England and 19% 
in the North West). The implication is that they may be doing a job with limited or 
no structured training. This is an opportunity to, if appropriate, try and extend the 
apprenticeship model which is not therefor in “competition” with accessing higher 
education.

6.  The data suggests that, as with the national level, there is a serious issue in Cumbria in terms 
of many of those who start apprenticeships not then completing them (across all levels but 
particularly Level 2). 

7.  Discussions with consultees have highlighted the significant barriers to many SMEs in 
providing apprenticeships and so accessing apprentices. Given the preponderance of 
SMEs in many sectors of the Cumbria economy (outside manufacturing and engineering) 
this is a concern.

. 

13  We have assumed that the level of educational qualification is a proxy for degree of disadvantage, but this may not always be true

43



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 20

8. RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the key issues and opportunities and an initial analysis of the data, there are some 
suggested strategic actions and objectives, which could be put in place as a county in order 
to address these. These should form the vision for the Apprenticeship Strategy in Cumbria which 
identifies where action could be taken to improve the system.

AIMS 

The aims of the strategy are to:

Develop the workforce skills needed by Cumbria’s economy and  
businesses in the future by creating high quality opportunities to develop,  

attract and retain skills in Cumbria

Contribute to enhancing diversity and social mobility.

OBJECTIVES

The proposed strategic objectives are:

Developing more apprenticeships in skill areas where they are under-represented 

1.   Focus on developing more apprenticeships in skill areas where they are under-represented 
(such as hospitality and digital)

Support efforts relating to these sectors and ensure there is provision within the county to support 
this. Work is ongoing in both sectors to improve this and to look at how we ensure apprenticeships 
in these sectors are attractive and we need to build on this. 

Improving participation in apprenticeships overall

There is scope overall to increase the “market share” of apprenticeships by increasing the number 
of young people (and older adults) who take-up apprenticeships. This is even though Cumbria 
has a much higher entry rate for young people than most other areas. This is because: (a) the 
overall numbers of young people rising over the next 5 to 8 years; (b) and there is a substantial 
cohort who do not progress to education or apprenticeships.

2.  Increase representation by gender of apprenticeships in some subject areas

There is a real opportunity to increase the gender participation in those apprenticeships subject 
areas that are heavily gender skewed. This provides an opportunity to increase numbers starting 
apprenticeships, especially in areas where there are long term skills needs in the economy (such 
as manufacturing and engineering). There are challenges in trying to achieve this as it relates 
to education subjects undertaken and attitudes amongst young people, their peers, employers 
and parents. The work on careers and work placements could help make such a change. 

44



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 21

3. Increase uptake of apprenticeships in older age groups

Although participation in apprenticeships is high in the 16 to 19 year olds there is evidence that 
the rate of take up in older adults (25 plus) is lower than average in Cumbria. Work could be done 
to encourage apprenticeships for all ages as a way of re-skilling and retaining our workforce, 
including those who are not school leavers into apprenticeships.

4. Enhance apprenticeships as a route to encourage greater social mobility and diversity in the 
workforce

Businesses should be open minded around this and should consider apprenticeships as a key part 
of social mobility. They can support employability and can enable individuals to gain skills in a 
non-academic context.

5. Promote level 2 and level 3 apprenticeships 

Promote level 2 and level 3 apprenticeships as much as the higher-level apprenticeships in order 
to tackle youth unemployment and provide those who are in employment with a more structured 
training package opportunity.

6. Encourage and promote the Provider Access Legislation (PAL) as a route to school children 
and students considering apprenticeships

Ensure that schools are positively engaged and educated around the diverse range of 
apprenticeships in the county, focussing on county wide opportunities as well as those in their 
district.

Preparedness for Apprenticeships
7. Support those entering apprenticeships with preparedness for work 

Feedback from some businesses and providers suggests that in some cases, apprentices have 
not been ready for work and employability skills have been limited. Focus is therefore required to 
help future and current apprentice with this, with support, mentoring and insights from employers. 

Improving the delivery of apprenticeships in Cumbria
8. Reduce dropout rates from apprenticeships

The level of dropout rates (i.e. non-completion) in Cumbria is a concern as it is nationally. 
This suggests that there are some systematic issues in the recruitment and then delivery of 
apprenticeship that needs careful attention. There is some evidence that, in spite of the well-
established system in the county, that the dropout rate overall may be higher than nationally.

45



CUMBRIA APPENTICESHIP STRATEGY 2023 • 22

APPENDIX A:  DATA ANALYSIS

TBC XX

46



47



This page is intentionally left blank



LEP DELIVERY UPDATE  

 

1. ISSUE 

 

1.1  Updating the LEP Scrutiny Board on the delivery of Cumbria LEP’s (CLEP’s) 

capital and revenue programmes.  

 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 

 

2.1 That the LEP Scrutiny Board note this report and raise any issues in relation 

to it.  

 

3. BACKGROUND 

 

3.1 LEPs are assessed by Government against three main themes – governance, 

strategy and delivery. This report is focused on the delivery theme and provides an 

update on the delivery of the LEP’s capital and revenue programmes.  

 

Capital Programmes 

3.2 CLEP’s major capital programmes, Getting Building Fund and Local Growth 

Fund were financially completed in line with Government’s respective deadlines. 

However, a number of projects still require practical completion and evidence to 

confirm defrayal of expenditure, in line with the Grant Funding Agreement.  

Getting Building Fund  

Marina Village 

3.3 The deadline for completion of this programme has now been extended to 

June 2023 as there was a delay in the Environment Agency reviewing the scheme 

and the applicant could not reframe the expenditure to deliver within the current 

financial year.  These revisions will need to be taken forward with both the current 

applicant and the new shadow Westmorland and Furness Authority, as full and final 

completion will transfer to it.  

3.4 Additionally, the CLEP Executive has held meetings with relevant 

stakeholders around the end use of the site in line with the strategic vision for the 

investment and the housing outcomes that are expected to be delivered. CLEP 

continues to seek greater clarity regarding this as emerging proposals did not fully 

align with the basis of CLEP’s enabling investment.  

A595 Bothel 

3.5 The reconstruction of the Greyhound/Torpenhow Junction, which CLEP has 

funded, is proceeding and was due for completion in February 2023. A recent update 

by the Cumbria County Council Delivery Team identified that as a result of various 

49

Agenda Item 9



delivery challenges the completion date would need to be extended. Officers are 

working to confirm an absolute deadline for practical completion. Again, this will need 

to be agreed with the current applicant and the new shadow Westmorland and 

Furness Authority.   

3.6 In terms of the wider A595 Bothel Strategic Improvements, the County 

Council is still awaiting DfT’s approval of the Outline Business Case. Council 

colleagues continue to press for this approval. 

Local Growth Fund  

Lillyhall North 

3.7 This scheme is now fully complete. Colleagues in Allerdale Borough Council 

are in positive and well progressed conversations with local businesses regarding 

occupation of the entirety of the site by 2024/25. This remains within the timescales 

for delivering project outcomes. 

A595 Grizebeck 

3.8 It Is worth noting that the scheme is now estimated to be £8.330m above the 

Outline Business Case cost estimate provided in 2019 – an increase of 35%. This 

cost increase is as a direct result of the continued inflationary pressures within the 

construction industry, resulting in both direct increases in construction materials cost 

and risk allocated by contractors in pricing contracts. A Change Control to reflect 

these changes was approved by the Investment Panel. The full scheme is still 

scheduled for practical completion by August 2026. 

Optimising Connectivity 2: Phase 2 - Southern Windermere  

3.9 There has been demonstrable progress with this scheme, with practical 

completion still on track for this financial year. The project is being closely monitored, 

with site visits now being undertaken.  

 

Low Carbon Barrow  

3.10 Close monitoring of the various activities within the Low Carbon Barrow 

project is continuing, with the programme subject to delivery challenges caused by 

supply chains, inflation, and global economic challenges. 

3.11 These pressures have translated into reduced demand for the Low Carbon 

Barrow Grants Programme as local businesses suffer from unstable markets and 

general financial insecurity. The practical completion date of the programme remains 

March 2023, due to revising the programme activity to align with this previously 

extended delivery timescales. A Change Control has been approved in 

correspondence to reflect these changes.  

 

50



Summary 

3.12 Defrayed expenditure is continuing to be monitored with the latest position 

showing a further 32% reduction in the outstanding sum to be evidenced from 

£2,247,501, to £1,528,600, in the past three months. This has reduced from £4.533 

million since the outset of this financial year.  

3.13 The outstanding evidence requirements now sit within 3 schemes -  

Optimising Connectivity 2, Grizebeck and Low Carbon Barrow.  At this stage, 

expenditure within Optimising Connectivity and Grizebeck appear to be on schedule. 

Current reporting would suggest some level of risk with the remaining expenditure 

within Low Carbon Barrow. However, the Local Growth Fund projects includes a 

£427,416 element of over-programming funded by the Cumbria Infrastructure Fund 

(CIF), and as such there is some scope to manage any underspends.   

Northern Cultural Regeneration Fund 

Abbot Hall 

3.14 The practical completion of the Abbot Hall refurbishment was completed with 

South Lakeland District Council transferring the operation of the Hall over to 

Lakeland Arts on 22 December 2022. All necessary reporting requirements are being 

provided to DCMS.  

Community Infrastructure Fund 

3.15 At a previous meeting LEP Scrutiny Board members confirmed their support 

to repurpose the Community Infrastructure Fund from a loan fund to a grant fund to 

support investment in either innovation or business decarbonisation. This resulted in 

the creation of the Innovating for Success (IfS) grant programme.  

3.16 The programme was launched at CLEP’s Annual General Meeting on 30 

September 2022, with Expressions of Interest invited from businesses by 28 October 

2022. This resulted in 103 business enquiries of which 96 formally submitted an 

Expression of Interest.  

3.17 Following eligibility checks, 91 businesses were invited to complete a full 

application and return this 6 January 2023.  In supporting applicants to develop their 

applications FIS360 provided innovation advice and CLEP provided decarbonisation 

advice. During the process 29 applications were formally withdrawn, with 23 

decarbonisation and 32 Innovation applications submitted. The remaining 7 

businesses neither applied nor formally withdraw from the process. 

3.18 The grant request of all of the full applications is £1,557,880 with a total 

eligible expenditure of £5,226,839. The breakdown being: 

• Decarbonisation £390,986 with a total project expenditure of £2,273,057  

• Innovation £1,166,895 with a total project expenditure of £2,953,782 

 

51



3.19 The available IfS Grant is £1,065,518, inclusive of the costs of both Stantec 

and FIS360. 

3.20 The map below shows the geographical spread of applicant businesses: 

 

3.21 The full applications are now being appraised with CLEP working with Stantec 

to complete these. Recommendations will be presented to a special Investment 

Panel on 27 February 2023 for approval, under the Panel’s delegated authority. 

Revenue Programmes 

Skills Bootcamps 

3.22 The largest revenue programme being delivered by CLEP in 2022/23 is the 

Department of Education (DfE) Wave 3 Skills Bootcamp programme, with an income 

of £975,362.  

3.23 Skills Bootcamps are part of the Government’s Lifetime Skills Guarantee and 

Plan for Jobs, which have been developed in partnership with employers, colleges, 

and local authorities. They are flexible courses of up to 16 weeks, giving 

unemployed, employed, or self-employed people who are aged 19+ the opportunity 

to build up sector-specific skills between Levels 3-5 and fast-track to an interview 

with a local employer.  

52



3.24 Skills Bootcamps will be co-funded by the employer, where the employer is 

training their own existing employees. If the employer is a large business (over 250 

employees) they will contribute 30% of costs and reduced to 10% for SMEs (less 

than 250 employees). There will not be, and cannot be, any charges to the individual 

participants.  

3.25 The local Skills Bootcamps, which are being delivered in Cumbria are:  

 

• Digital Core – Computer Aided Design  

• Digital Core – Network  

• Digital Core – Cyber Security 

• Technical Core – Welding  

• Construction – Construction Trades  

• Management Certificate of Professional competence for Road Haulage or 

Passenger Transport 

• HGV skills  

• Certificate in Tourism and Visitor Economy Management  

• Project Management  

 

3.26 Contracting has produced challenges with some providers unable to generate 

the starts that they contractually agreed to deliver. This has been a particular 

challenge for the FE Sector. The LEP has therefore needed to secure new 

independent providers from outside of Cumbria to bolster delivery.  

3.27 Significant progress was made throughout December to secure the 373 starts 

required on the Programme. Importantly, the 50% 182 starts milestone target was 

met in December, with 187 learners started, in line with DfE’s extended deadline for 

this.  

3.28 The LEP has received its offer for 2023/24 for £1.2m, with 70% of this (£840k) 

confirmed immediately and the rest to be confirmed later in the year. The LEP has 

issued Invitation to Tenders to secure places for 371 learners, covering the following 

provision: 

• Digital Core – Computer Aided Design  

• Digital Core – Cyber Security  

• Technical Core – Digital Manufacturing  

• Construction – Construction Trades 

• Green Skills – Retrofitting  

• Logistics - HGV skills  

• Certificate in Tourism and Visitor Economy Management  

• Project Management  

 

 

 

53



Growth Hub Business Support Programme 

 

3.29      CLEP receives £231,000 to deliver business support advice to Small and 

Medium Enterprises (SMEs) through BEIS’s Growth Hub programme. This is being 

delivered by a series of low, medium and high intensity interventions, with targets of 

200, 500 and 50 to be delivered, respectively for each of these interventions, 

alongside 15 Workshops. All activity is to be delivered by 31 March 2023.  

 

3.30      The Programme is being by an in-house team - Head of Business 

Programmes, Business Growth Manager and Business Advisor, with input from the 

Chief Executive and other members of the team. However, in order to ensure that 

targets are met CLEP has moved ahead with sub-contract support from a small 

number of organisations.  All outcomes are to be delivered by the end of the 

contractual year, together with the necessary evidence to support the full drawdown 

of expenditure.  

 

3.31      The programme performance as at 14 February was as follows: 

 

 Annual 

Target 

Completed  Pipeline 

(meetings 

held or in 

progress) 

Total OUTSTANDING 

TARGET 

Light 200 166 11 177 23 

Medium 500 308 56 364 136 

High 50 50 0 50 0 

 

3.32 The planned delivery for the remainder of the contract year will ensure that all 

targets are effectively delivered with the focus being on medium assists as these 

have the greatest proportion of delivery activity still outstanding. The combination of 

planned in-house and sub-contracted delivery exceeds the number of medium 

assists outstanding. At this point there is no indication of funding into 2023/24.  

 

Barrow Town Deal  

 

3.33 The Barrow Town Deal revenue programme is a Business & Enterprise 

support project, which will provide tailored assistance to individuals and SMEs in 

Barrow to support resilience and business growth. The programme will aim to 

increase business start-ups; those becoming self-employed, or people who wish to 

create community businesses. A combined total of 541 enterprises and individuals 

will be supported by the project. 

 

3.34 The project is now fully mobilised with a contract now in place with the 

Cumbria Chamber of Commerce signed in October 2022, with project activity 

54



officially launched on 28 November. The CLEP Project Manager took up post on 5 

December with new arrangements for this being put in place in March 2023. The 

main activities have related to strands 1 and 2 of the project, namely, enterprise 

support and community enterprise support, including awareness raising, marketing, 

advertising and promotion in local press, poster campaigns in Barrow Jobcentre 

Plus, Barrow Business and Intellectual Property Centre (Barrow Library), and via 

Furness College, Inspira, Sure Start and Groundwork. This was alongside social 

media promotion including LinkedIn sponsored content and Chamber/ Cumbria 

Social Enterprise Partnership/CLEP social media channels. 

 

3.35 The activities planned for January-March 2023 include: 

 

● Self-employment online workshops delivered online, every other month. 

 

● Three-day business start-up course at The Forum, delivered by a local 

business advisor. 

 

● Accounting training courses and using Canva for business. 

 

● Commencing supply Chain activity (strand 3), with the Chamber of Commerce 

using its established relationships with BAE Systems to support delivery. 

 

Careers Hub  

 

3.36 In Autumn 2021 the CEC and CLEP confirmed additional funding would be 

made available to enable the Hub to support all mainstream secondary schools, 

special schools and colleges in Cumbria. This resulted in the appointment of a 

further 0.5 Enterprise Coordinator and the recruitment of a further 11 schools into the 

Hub, with all eligible schools signing a Memorandum of Understanding and joining 

the Hub by January 2022.  

 

3.37 Funding for the Academic year 2022/23 has been confirmed by the CEC but 

at a reduced rate. The caseload for Enterprise Co-ordinators has been increased 

from circa 15 to circa 20 schools and the activity funding per school has been 

reduced from £800 per school to £600. The Team now consists of Cath Dutton 

Careers Hub Manager; Jo Tate Senior Enterprise Co-Ordinator; Rachelle Poyntz, 

HIP Co-ordinator and Sharon Hitchen, Programme Administrator. Mel Carr Part Time 

Enterprise Co-Ordinator is currently on maternity leave.  

 

3.38 The reduced funding has resulted in a review of caseloads with the two full-

time ECs increasing their caseload to 24 schools each, including Special Educational 

Needs and Disability (SEND) and Pupil Referral Unit (PRU).  The Hub Manager will 

continue to provide support to the FE colleges.  The Programme Administrator will 

provide administrative support to the Enterprise Coordinators to enable them to 

55



focus on supporting the schools to achieve the Gatsby Benchmarks and Grant Offer 

Letter targets.   

 

3.39 Progress against the Gatsby Benchmarks is shown below.  This data is from 

the Compass Returns submitted by schools and colleges in December (96% return). 

   

 
 

3.40 The Hub has targeted support in place to improve achievement of the Gatsby 

Benchmarks including: 

 

• GBM1: Parental Engagement Task & Finish Group to identify and share best 

practice; 

• GBM2: Launch of the U-Explore Cumbria Labour Market Platform for schools, 

young people and parents; 

• GBM3: Our Future Alumni - 18-35 inspirational employees supporting promotion 

of the opportunities in Cumbria by going back into schools  

• GBM4: Teacher Encounter Project to engage teachers with industry; 

• GBM6: Experience of the Workplace Task and Finish Group to explore different 

models to offer more meaningful engagement and support all young people; 

• GBM7: Supporting schools to implement the new Provider Access Legislation 

(Jan23) 

 

3.41 The CEC launched the Hub Innovation Project (HIP): Removing Barriers 

fund in 2021.  A second round was launched for delivery in the 2022/23 academic 

year, commencing in September 2022 and CLEP was successful with their 

application with funding of £66,500 subsequently secured. 

 

3.42 The HIP project is designed to identify new ideas or approaches to resolve 

gaps in careers education and provision to remove barriers and improve young 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

GBM 1 GBM2 GBM3 GBM4 GBM5 GBM6 GBM7 GBM8
Cumbria National

56

https://cumbria.startprofile.com/page/home-page


people’s outcomes, particularly for those, who are disadvantaged and will be 

delivered in partnership with Furness College.   

 

3.43 The project focuses on Barrow because: 

 

• The Universal Credit (UC) claimants aged 18-24 are significantly above the levels 

in Cumbria and England  

• Nearly one in ten young people are unemployed 

• The town is the 31st most deprived local authority in England, out of 317 areas 

• The perception is that BAE is the only employer in the area due to its size 

• Employability skills in young people is identified as a major issue by businesses 

as demonstrated in young peoples’ ability to complete aptitude tests when 

applying for jobs and apprenticeships. 

 

3.44 The project will focus on Construction, Hair and Beauty and Motor Vehicle as 

the curriculum areas as these have lower levels of positive destinations.  

 

3.45    The Careers and Enterprise Company also recently launched the Teacher 

Encounter Fund, with the Careers Hub being successful with its application.  The 

aim of the project is to develop teacher awareness of career opportunities linked to 

their own subject area by enabling teachers to spend time in industry. The project 

will support up to 24 teachers from across Cumbria focused on the A66 scheme 

employers.  The funding secured is £19,500 plus £5,400 match funding from the 

National Highways.   

 

3.46 It will support delivery of Gatsby Benchmark 4 and raise awareness of 

employment opportunities in the construction sector.  Currently, BM4 score is 64.7% 

in Cumbria and the national achievement rate is 71%, with several schools 

highlighting the challenge in achieving this Benchmark.  In addition, research has 

highlighted that subject teachers are not confident of the career options linked to 

their subjects.   

 

International Trade  

 

3.47 CLEP continues to deliver the DiT Key Account Management function and 

has refreshed its delivery plan to ensure that the investment targets for this financial 

year are achieved.  

 

3.48 The LEP Scrutiny Board is invited to note this report and raise any 

issues relating to this or any other LEP delivery activity.  

57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Finance Update
	20230227 Finance Report Annex A

	7 Governance Update
	8 Strategy Update
	5a. Apprenticeship strategyv2

	9 Delivery Update

